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1. Name of Property

historic name _C. W, Miller Livery Stable n
other name/site number __Huron Strest Garage

2. Location

street & town 75 West Huron Strest ' [ not for publication

city or town Buftalo [ vicinity

state _ New York code _ NY county Erle code 028 zipcode 14202

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As tho designaned authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | heroby certity that this (] - nomination

[0 requsst for determination of gligibility meats the documentation standards for registering properties In the Naticnal Register of
HmﬁmwmmmmuummmmmmhﬂhhumPmau.lnwnphwn.thumny
[ meetz ] does not meat the Nations| Register criteria. | recommand that this propanty be considared significant

(m] O statewide 5 locally. { (] Ses continuation sheet for additional comments.)
Signature ﬁu%‘ 4'?%11 Dt ! !

State of Federal agency and bureau

in My opinion, the property L] meats [] does not mest the National Register criteria. { L] See continuation sheet for additional
pommants. )

Signature of carhying GHCial THe Dats

Stata or Fedaral agancy and bursau

4. Mational Park Service Certification

lmrdﬁwﬂlythmhpmp-rlrh: Signature of tha Kespar Date of Action
entared In the National Ragister.
[ See continuation sheet.
O detarmined allgible for the
Natioral Register
[0 Sae continuation shast
[ determinad not aligible for the
National Regster,
[ remaved from the National

Ragistar,
[ cthar, {explain:)
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Nama of Property

rig York
Cournty and State

5. Classiflcation

Ownership of Property Category of Property
icheck as many baxes as apply) fchack only ona box)
| [ public-local [J district
(2 private 4 building(s)
] public-State [ site
[ public-Federal [ structure
1 object

Name of related multiple property listing
{Entar *N/A" It property Is not part of a multiple property listing.)

Number of Resources within Property
{Do not melude praviously listed resources in fhe count.)

Contributing Moncontributing
1 0 buildings
sites
structures
objects
i 0 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed
in the National Register

Narrative Description

N/A MN/A

6. Fun::linn or Use _

Historle Function Current Function

[Entar categories from nstructions) (Enter categories from Instructions)

commearcialbusiness vacanl
-

7. Description 3

Architectural Classification Materials

{Enter catagories from instructions) (Enter categorias from instructions)
foundation stone
walls brick ",

Medina sandstone (floors 1 & 2)

roal asphalt
ather metal truss

{Describe tha historic and cument condition of the property on one or more continuation sheats.)
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W, uttalo Co
Hame of Proparty County end State
‘8. Significance .

-Applicable National Register Criteria Areas of Significance

{Mark "x" In one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying thi property
for National Regster listing.)

R A Property is associated with events that have made
& significant contribution io the broad patiemns of
our history.

] B Property is associaled with 1he lives of parsons
significant in our past.

[ C Propeny embodies the distinctive characteristics
of a type, pariod, or method of construction or
represents the work of 8 masler, or possasses
high artistic values, or represents a significant and
distinguishabile entity whose components lack
individua! distinztion.

[0 D Property has yislded, or is likely to yield,
information important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
[Wark “x* in 8% the boxes thal apply.)

Property is:

O A owned by a religious ‘institution or used for
religious purposes.

[ B removed from its original location.

[ € a birthpiace or grave.

O D & cemetery.

[ E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.
] F a commemorative prq:-lamr.

[ G less than 50 years of age or achieved signlficance
within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance

{Elmlahm significance of the proparty an one or more continuation sheats.)

{enter categorias from instructions)

Architecture

Period of Significance
1892:1894

Significant Dates
gonstricted fin 1892-1894

* Significant Persons

{Comgplate f Criterion B Is marked abova)
MN.A

Cultural Affiliation
N.A,

Architect/Bulider
Lansing & Beier

9, Major Bibliographical References

‘Bibliography

{Ciites the books, articles, and cther sources used In preparing thig form on one or mone confinuabion shoets

Previous documentation on file (NPS):

O preiiminary determination of individual listing (36
CFR 67) has bean requested
[ previously listed in the National Register
[ previously determined eligible by the National
Repister
designated & Natlonal Histeric Landmark
recorded by Historic Amarican Buildings Survay
# :
[ recorded by Historic American Engineering
Fecord #

Primary location of additional data:

2 state Historic Preservation Office
[ Other State agency
Fedaral agency
Local governmant
[ University
O Other Name of reposttory:
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C. W. Miller Livery Stable, Buffalo _ Er Count, New York
Name of Property unty and Stale

10. Geographical Data
Acreage of Property _less than oneacre

UTM References

{Placa addiional boundarias of the property on B continuation sheet .}

118 183477 4755841 2

Zone Easting Morthing Zome Easting Morthing
3 4

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

[5ee continuation aheet

Verbal Boundary Description
{Describe the boundanies of the property on & continuation sheet.)

Boundary Justification
[Expiain why the boundaries were selactad on a confinuation sheet.)
11. Form Prepared By

nameftite _ Francis A. Kowsky & Martin Wachadio, edited by Mark Peckham

organization historic preservation consultants date June 4, 2007
street & number 62 Niagara Falls Bivd telephone_716-836-5068 /716-849-6168
clity ortown _Buffalo state NY  zipcode 14214

Additional Documentation
"Submit the lollowing fems with the completed form:

Continuation Sheets

A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property’s location,
A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or NUMErous resources.

Photographs
Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional items
{Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner

(Complete this term &l the reques! of SHPD or FPO.)

nameftitlte _ Hurande! |, Inc.

street & number 3807 North Buffalo Road telephone
city or town _Orchard Park state NY zipcode 14127
Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information Is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate

properties lor listing or determine eligibility for listing, 1o list propedies, and o amend existing listings. Response to this request is requitad 1o obilain &
banefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (18 U.S.C. 470 af saq.).

Estimated Burden Statement. Public reporling burden for this iom is estimated 1o average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining dala, and completing and reviewing the lorm. Direct comments regarding this burden estimale or any aspect of
this form to the Chiaf, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and tha Office of
Management ard Budgst, Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503,

r
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DESCRIPTION

The C.W. Miller Livery Stable is a six-story masonry building located on the north side of West Chippewa St. in downtown Buffalo,
mid-block between Franklin 5t. and Delaware Ave. Built berween 1892 and 1894, the building is approximately 60 feet wide on
Chippewa Si. and 265 feet deep. Walls are built of brick above a massive stone foundation, The fagade features three major vehicle
bays surrounded by cut sandstone walls, an arcade of pilasters and round srches, and an attic story of rectangular windows.
Decoration includes terra cotta moldings and spandrels. The remaining extenor walls are utilitarian in construction and characier.
Wood floors are suspended from steel wrusses in the attic with hanging pin connected eye bars and I-beams designed to limit
obstructions at each floor. Ramps, modified in the 1920s, provide vehicular access between floors. The six-story terra cotta Curtiss
Building (1913) is immediately adjacent to the Miller building on the east. North of the Curtiss Building along Franklin Sweet are two
two-story commercial buildings (¢.1920) and a parking lot. Surface parking lots occupy the areas adjacent to the building on the west
and north and across the street to the south. )

The six-story fagade is divided into three horizontal zones. The two-story base zone is faced with red sandstone laid in ashiar with
recessed joints and features three major bays separated by two minor stone bays. These narrow minor bays, which read as piers, have
in them single sash windows placed one above the other. Modern garage doors fill two of the major bays at the first floor. The center
bay, formerly a carriage entrance, now is sealed with a metal frame plate glass window. Above the three major openings on the
ground floor, moldings of tongue and grove design frame simple rectangular metal spandrels. The second floor major bays feature
rows of windows in groups of four, each separated from the other by a wooden Tuscan half colonette. All of the original front
windows on this level are intact and., like all the windows on the fagade. are glazed with two-over-two lights. A cyma recta comice
molding crowns the two-story base level.

The fagade above the two-story base is composed of red face brick with molded brick and terra comta trim and continues the five-bay
vertical division of the base. The third through fifth floors are treated as a unit, with three groups of paired windows placed beneath
double arches. separated by single windows, which creates an interrupted arcade. Vertically, all of the windows are separated by
recessed spandrels of plain and molded brick; those on the fourth and fifth floors have sills of terra cotta decorated with egg and dan
molding. The terra cotta arches also feature egg and dart moldings in the soiffits, as well as bead and reel moldings on the voussoirs.
All of the arcade arches have a molding at their springing that reads as a belt course across.the width of the facade. On the sixth floor,
triple windows alternate with single windows in a continuation of the five bay divisions of the lower stories. These windows are
framed with egg and dart terra cotta moldings and are linked by a continuous sill. The elevation is terminated by a plain entablature
and cornice in place of a richly decorated entablature with brackets, swags, and a projecting comice lost many years ago. A brick
chimney rises above the roofline on the right or eastern side of the building. Mast of the windows on the front of the building above
the second floor have been removed and the openings sealed with plywood sheets,

Thé three other sides of the building have common brick walls with no oramentation. The side walls, facing east and west, feature
widely spaced fenestration. On the fiest, fourth, fifih, and sixth floors, the windows are single, four-over-four sash type beneath
segmental arches. On the second and third floors where the horse stalls were located, the windows are paired, with [-beam lintels and
slone or concrete sills. Some of these windows were modified in the distant past. The surviving glazing is also four over four. The
rear of the building features a row of seven windows on each floor, six evenly spaced, with the vertical row on the east set somewhat
apart from the others. The window at the lower night side of the first floor has been replaced with a double door. The surviving
windows here are six over six. On the roof, two wood and corrugated metal penthouses housed the elevator shafts and four glazed
skylights terminated four interior light shafts.

The interior of the stable consists of wood floors with white-washed brick walls, the bottom five of which are unencumbered by any
significant internal divisions. The firsi four floors are connected 10 sach other by driving ramps in the forward part of each level, Two
elevators at the rear &nd a stairway and small elevator near the southwest comer kink all of the floors. The floors above the first floor,
which is supported by columns in the basement. are suspended from a series of eleven ransverse riveted steel trusses on the sixth floor
extending the widih of the building. These trusses rest on brick-enclosed steel piers rising from the basement. Pin-connected eye bars
hanging from these trusses support the wooden floors below. This system provides unobstructed space on the first floor and on the
other levels, only the thin metal suspenders interdict the space.
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In 1895, in an anicle in The Engineering Record, the architects supphui a detailed description of the building and catalogued the
functions of the seven mierior levels:

The basement is occupied by the power, light, heat and mechanical plant and the blacksmith, woodworking, and
horseshoeing shops and is also used for shelter of omnibuses, baggage wagons, van, eic. The first floor is devoted to the
accommadaiion of vehicles hitched up ready to go out, and also contains the public and private offices, iocker rooms,
toilet rooms, etc. The second and third floors are covered with horse stalls, access to which and to the basement is had
by inclined plancs framps]... The fourth floor is for storing vehicles not in daily use. The fifth floor has rooms for
harness, drying-rooms, and rooms for various kinds of carriage works, and the sixth floor is for hay and grain storage in
the rear and for the storage of sleighs in the front half. All repairs, trimming, painting, and vamishing are done of the
fifth floor.'

As originally buill, the basement'and first, second, and third floors were connected along the eastern side of the building by long
ramps of gentle gradient. Circa 1925, after the building became a parking garage, the original horse ramps were removed, and @ series
of shorter, steeper ramps for avtomobile use were constructed along the eastern and western sides of the interior. (Tt is likely that these
new ramps reused some of the material from the original ramps.) This series of ramps now runs from the basement to the fourth floor.
From the present street entrance in the eastern bay, one has access to a ramp that slopes gently up to the first floor. Originally, a ramp
in this area led down to the basament; carriages and horses reached the first floor from the street via a now vanished ramp in the
central bay. Also gone from the ground floor entrance area is the office that once occupied the western bay and the long, narmow
waiting room for teamsters that stood between the two original horse ramps. Approximately thirty feet in from the streel, where the
ramp to the first floor begins, a wider, L-shaped ramp descends to the left 10 the basement. From the western side of the south or front
end of the first floor, a wide, L-shaped ramp leads to the second floor. From the western side of the south end of the second floer,
another similar L-shaped ramp leads to the third floor. And from the western side of the south end of the third fioor, a wide, L-shaped
ramp leads to the fourth floor. As in the earliest days of the stable, the fifth and sixth floors are inaccessible by ramps. Three
elevators and a staircase also provide access to the floors. The staircase is located in the southwestern section of the building, and
wraps around a small passenger elevator, which is protected by a metal-sheathed fire door on each floor, Two elevators at the north
end of the building carried horses, vehicles, feed, and equipment. The large elevator at the northeast corner, protected by metal-
sheathed fire doors, is intact, but 2 metal staircase has replaced the smaller elevator at the northwest corner.

The basement encompasses the entire footprint of the building and extends under the sidewalk on the south. The foundation walls,
which support the exterior brick walls, are of randomly laid limestone, Metal columns supporting the floor above have been
extensively braced by later steel supports. Along the sides of the foundation. walls are pyramidal brick bases for the steel columns
encased in brick piers rise 10 the roof to the sixth fioor 1o support the trusses. The southern section of the basement contains
mechanical apparatus, no longer in service, that provided water and other services to the building. Beneath the sidewalk is & boiler,
alsé out of service, manufactured by the local firm of Farrar & Trefts. And the sound of water from a spring that was uncovered
during construction being conveyed to the city sewer continuously antmates this shadowy quarter of the building.

The second through fifth floors are large open spaces obstructed only by the slender steel suspension bars. The second and third floors
originally housed stalls for approximately 250 horses. Chamfered and grooved wood beams inseried between the suspended support
bars are a remnant of the stalls that once filled the spaces. The fourth floor was originally used for carriage storage, and the fifth floor,
once divided by partitions that are no longer there, housed the repair shops.

The sixth floor is the most interesting space in the building. Here, in the lofiiest space within the stable (this floor is half again as high
as all the others), is a magnificent display of structure. Visible are the eleven riveted steel trusses, with their mmfofcmg cross bracing
tie rods and solid timber beams that sustain the load of floors two through five by means of suspension bars.” Separating the northern
section of the fioor, where hay waited to be broken up (the electric machine used in this process sits forgotien in a corner on another
floor} and dropped down & shoot to the horses on the lower floors, from the southern part, where sleighs resided until the retwrn of

' *“The Miller Stable, Buffalo, N.Y " The Engineering Record 31 (Jan. 12, 1895): 116,
! The Carnegie steel works in an.burgh manufactured these trusses. One beam yet bears the shipper's hand writien chalk merking,
"C. W. Miller's.”
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winter, is a workmanlike, tongue and groove partition. The untreated wood of this divider has, with age, like the surrounding
umpainted brick walls, acquired » mellow patina. A second dividing wall insialied later in the southern end of the space is o makeshifi
affair that appears 1o have been built with surplus windows. The roof admits four skylights which originally stood above light and
ventilation shafts that extended downward to the third floor. The shafis have been removed and flooring continued across them at
each level.
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SIGNIFICANCE

The C.W. Miller Stable in downtown Buffalo 1s significant under Criterion A in the areas of transportation
history and commerce and under Criterion C in the areas of architecture and engmeering. Designed by Lansing
and Bejerl and built berween1892-1894, the six-story building incorperated innovative structural solutions that
accommodated the circulation needs and specialized functions associated with urban liveries in a vertical
program. The design of the building addressed lighting, heating, plumbing, waste removal, and fire suppression
with the latest available technologies while outwardly creating a distinctive fagade compatible in scale and style
with the commercial architecture of downtown during this period. At the time of its construction, the Miller
stable attracted national attention in the engineering press for its system of construction and the ample
accommodations it provided for horses and the storage of carts, carriages, and sleighs. Charles W. Miller
(1837-1921), a prominent Buffalo businessperson who had made his fortune in urban horse transportation
businesses, invited many out-of-town guests, including representatives from the New York City press and
influential railroad executives, to Buffalo to celebrate the opening of his state-of-the-art facility. The local press
hailed it as a “palace for horses” and claimed that 1t was the finest stable in the United States. It was certainly
the most important stable ever built in Buffalo. Today, the C. W. Miller Livery Stable is one of the last
surviving livery stables in downtown Buffalo’.

The C. W. Miller Livery Stable is the most potent extant reminder in Buffalo of the observation of Clay
McShane, an historian of horse-drawn transport, that the “amount of work horses were required to perform in
the mid-ninetieth-century city was extensive and grew dramatically before the twentieth century opened.”* The
horse became more and more important as an urban beast of burden beginning in the 1830s, when horse-drawn
vehicles began to replace hand carts as the means by which goods and freight moved about the streets of
Amernican cities. By the close of the Civil War, major cities depended primarily on the horse power for the
delivery of freight, for public transportation, for the distribution of food, and for fire, police, and other
municipal services. By 1900, there were five horses for every eighteen people in Buffalo, a trend that mirrored
a nationwide transportation phenomenon.

Thie era of the horse-drawn livery busimess could be said to have begun in 1839, when William Hemdon
founded in Boston the first express delivery company. The ancestor to such present-day businesses as United
Parce] Services, Herndon's carts drawn by two or more horses greatly improved the delivery of goods from
ships and trains to businesses and homes. Before long, states McShane, Herndon's teamsters “displaced the cart
men and rendered the human-pushed wheelbarrows obsolete.” > The growth of railroads from the 1840s to the
1880s in the Easl and Mid-West fostered the spread of livery businesses like Herndon's in other cities.

In addition to moving goods, equine power became the chief means of locomotion for people within cities.
Horse drawn vehicles for hire--cabs or hacks—had become a fixture on American streets by the 1850s.

' Other surviving stables in Buffalo include the Lenhard Livery and Boarding Stable at 177 Elm 5t. (1891} and the White Brathers
Livery Stable at 430 Jersey St. (1889)
3 Clay McShane, “Gelded Age Boston,” New England Quarterly, 74{June 2001), 276

* McShane. loe. eit. 278.
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Horsecars or street railways allowed people to move about cities more rapidly than before as well as to make
possible home life in neighborhoods far away from where they worked. Private horsc-drawn carriages also
grew fashionable with well-to-do and middle class citizens, prompting the construction of drives in parks and
urban parkways. The parkways that Frederick Law Olmsted and Caivert Vaux planned for Buffalo in 1868,
which were arranged primarily with non-commercial carriages and horseback nders in mind, were the first in an
American city and are still among the most notable examples in the United States”.

The career of Charles W. Miller in Buffalo reflects the progress of horsepower in American cities in the
nineteenth century. In 1855, Miller took over the omnibus business that his father, J. S. Miller, had established
eight years earlier on Main Street connecting the docks on the waterfront with Cold Spring, some three miles
inland. *It was the day of pay-as-you leave,” reported a local newspaper, “and the passengers guided the driver
when alighting by a pull on 2 strap attached to-the driver's foot, one pull for the nght side of the street, two for
the left.” After five years, young Miller sold the linc but stayed on to manage the service until 1864. In that
year, he bought the first of several stables and began his career in the livery business. Miller’s success was
assured in 1872 when he signed a contract with the New York Central Railroad to transport goods and
passenger baggage to and from the trains that were arriving in Buffalo with greater and greater frequency. A
man of energy and ingenuity, Miller radically improved the haphazard system of baggage transfer that had
prevailed before his time and soon enjoyed the rewards of flourishing trade. “The simplicity of the system in
being able to check baggage from the house straight through to destination appealed to the public from the start
after the chaos which had reigned Fm\riow]y and the new system found instant and lasting favor with the
public,” Miller proudly remarked.” Adding cabs to his fleet of two-horse wagons and opening a downtown
office where one could purchase railway tickets and, at the same time, arrange for baggage to be picked up,
Millet soon became the proprietor of the most important livery business in Buffalo. In 1892, riding the crest of
a wave of success, Miller determined to erect the largest and best equipped livery stable in town,

Choosing a site on West Huron Street in the downtown business district, Miller engaged a young architect,
Williams Lansing of the firm of Lansing & Beierl, to design the six-story building being nominated. Thinking
on a grand scale, Miller planned his new stable to include up-to-date facilities for 250 horses, 200 drivers, and
over 150 vehicles (thirty of which were baggage wagons).

The accomplishment of Miller's ideal stable was, however, fraught with both financial and material
difficulties. In January 1893, when construction had only just begun, Miller’s existing stable burned to the
ground, forcing him to acquire an interim location for his business. The tragedy increased the need for work on
the new stable to go rapidly. But the discovery of a bed of quick sand many feet deep at the site presented
Lansing with unforeseen problems in the laying the foundations. Indeed, some in town faulted Miller as
arrogant for even thinking of going ahead with the project at this location. Rising to the challenge, Lansing

* Olmsted Parks and Parkways Thematic Resources National Register nomination, 1982.
5 “Miller's Sale Ends Tradition of Old Buffalo,” Buffalo Express, July 18, 1918,
:-‘hﬁuu's Sale.”

According 1o the title search, Charles W. Miller purchased the property from various parties from December [892 through Augusl
1893. In 1900, Miller transferred title to the C. W. Miller Transfer Co., who in turn sold the property to the Susquehanna Transfer
Corporation. The property was purchased by Anna Weber in 1922, and she held it until 1960, Subsequent transfers were: 1960 1o 75
West Huron Street, Inc.; 1986 1 Chuse Manhattan Bank. 1993 1o Key Bank of New York: 2003 to Hurondel I, Inc.; and 2003 1 Huron
Parking Services, Inc. ' :

-
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overcame for his client the dilemma presented by the wet ground by resting the building on one thousand
wooden pilings and by providing for a pumping system to remove the constant flow of water from an
underground spring. In arriving at this solution, Lansing relied in part on Newcomb Carlton (1869-1953),
whose name appeared as the consulting engineer for the mechanical plant, which would have surely included
dealing with the ground water problem. A recent graduate of the mechanical engineening program at Stevens
Institute of Technology in Hoboken, New Jersey, Carlton had come to Buffalo in 1891 to begin a career that
would see him appointed in 1899 as Director of Works for Buffalo’s Pan-American Exposition (where, in 1901,
he would help carry President McKinley, wounded by an assassin's bullet, to the safety of a nearby residence).
Eventually, Carlton would rise to president of the board of the Western Union Telegraph Company and take his
place in the history of communications alongside that of Cyrus Field.?

The Miller stable enterprise with which young Carlton was associated attracted national attention in the
professional press. Undoubtedly, in the hope of securing future clients in Buffalo and elsewhere, the
architectural firm of Lansing & Beier] supplied the readers of The Engineering Record a lengthy description of
the new building. Specially, concerning the foundations, they explained the system of construction that is still
in place:

The construction of the stable entailed a considerable amount of difficulty owning to the character of
the soil. It was necessary to excavate about 12 feet below grade in order to get in the footings. The
soil was composed entirely of quicksand, carrying water, and as our excavation tool us about 5 feet
below the sewer it was necessary to pump continuously from the time the excavation was a depth of
about 6 feet. The last 2 or 3 feet the digging was done in cold weather, so that the banks were frozen
to a considerable depth and it was not necessary to sue sheet pilling except in one or two cases
where closest adjoining buildings were endangered. The quicksand was 51 feet deep and rested on
a bed of limestone. The piles were beech and maple, 25 feet long, this being the greatest length that
was possible to drive. These were afierward cut off from 4 to 6 feet, leaving an average length of
pile in the ground of about 20 feei. Concrete was put in around the pile heads and the oak grillage
was covered with 3-inch maple plank, on which we laid dimension stone of an average thickness of
14 inches. The pressure from the columns was distributed by means of 15-inch steel beams, 12 feet
long, laid on top of the stones, bedded in cement, and filled out with concrete.’

The stable also employs another uncommon structural feature. Above the first story, each of the five long
wooden floors is suspended from eleven transverse metal trusses resting on steel columns encased in brick piers
that rise from the basement through the full height of the building, These trusses and their cross bracing tie rods
are exposed on the sixth floor, which is surely one of the most striking historic workspaces in Buffalo (Fig. 7).
Thus, the outer brick walls support only their own weight; they are not load-bearing. This system had the
advantage of producing a ground floor unobstructed by any interior supports (Fig. 3). On the upper floors, the
slender metal suspenders, which take up very little room, and circular truss rivets are left exposed (Fig. 6). This

* Carlton is noted as “the consulting engineer for the mechanical plant” in "The Miller Stable, Buffalo, N.Y.,” The Engineering
Record, 31(1895), p. 116. For Carlton's career. se¢ “Newcomb Carlton Dies at Age of 84, New York Times, May 14, 1953, p. 67, |
and Charles Penrose, Newcomb Carlton, 1869-1953, of Western Union (New York: Newcomen Society in North America, 1956). L18;
1B.

* “Miller Stable,” loc. cir., p. 116.
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method of construction may have been used in other utilitarian structures, but it appears to be unusual for
stables. The recently shuttered Claremont Stables in New York City. for example, also erected in 1892'°
employed a more traditional structural system consisting of load-bearing walls with internal cast iron columns
or wooden piers supporting each floor.

In addition to its significant engineering, Lansing designed the Miller Stable with a distinctive fagade
combining elements of the Romanesque Revival style with neo-classical details inspired by the Renaissance
Revival. The fagade is divided horizontally into a massive two-story stone base, an arcaded three-story body
and substantial attic story lerminating the composition. Fully evolved, this system of design, which Louis
Sullivan immortalized in his 1896 essay, “The Tall office Building Artistically Considered,” is notably
represented in Buffalo by Adler & Sullivan's Guaranty Building (1894) and D. H. Bumham’s Ellicott Square
Building (1895). Williams Lansing and Max Beierl began their careers in the office of Green & Wicks before
establishing a partnership shortly before their commission for the Miller Stable. Other significant surviving
commissions of this partnership include the Lafayette Street Presbyterian Church (1894-1896); the Connecticut
Street Armory (1896-1899); Our Lady of Perpetual Help Roman Catholic Church (1897-1898); Holy Trinity
Lutheran Church (1902-1905); the original design for the new campus of Canisius College (1908-1911) and
numerous residences and commercial buildings.

With Williams Lansing and Newcomb Carlton (the stable may also have been the first important undertaking
of his career) to advise on solutions to mechanical problems, “Charlie,” as Miller liked to be addressed,
realized his dream of creating a first-class building that splendidly coordinated the many aspects of a large and
complex equine delivery operation. In addition to the twelve-foot-wide ramps accessing the basement and first
floor (vehicles and horses going to and from the basement used the descending ramp entered from the street
through the eastern bay entryway; vehicles and horses going to and from the first floor used the ascending ramp
entered from the street through the central bay entryway), the ground floor originally contained a long, narrow
room for drivers between the ramps, and an office in the western bay. In the rear of the first floor, vehicles
already hitched to horses waited ready 1o go at a moment’s notice. The second and third floors, which were
accessible from the ground floor and basement by ramps, were arranged with stalls for horses. There was also
an area for washing down the animals on both the second and third floors. In the center of all levels above the
second floor, four 10" x 15" open shafts rose to skylights that lighted and ventilated the long rectangular floors.
{These light wells have been floored over; however, the skylights remain.) The fourth and fifth floors were
planned for storing and maintaining coaches. On the fifth floor, craftsmen painted and varmished vehicles and
boys washed blankets and then dried them in a heated blanket room. Hay and feed were kept in the rear portion
of the sixth floor, while the front section of the top story provided space for storing sleighs, a popular rental
item during Buffalo's snowy winters. The blacksmith shop, power plant (steam provided heat for the entire
building and drove electric generators that supplied current for 350 incandescent lights and a sump pump
system), and an area for storing heavy wagons were located in the basement (Fig. 5). Two pumps were located
in the basement to pump ground water into the municipal sewer. The basement also contained two hydraulic
pumps that operated two elevators, The larger elevator carried feed between the basement and sixth floor; the
smaller clevator ran between the first floor and the roof and transported coaches and sick horses, Both elevators
are extant. . .

" 173-177 West 89" §t., National Register 1980.

¢
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Combining architectural distinction with well-thought-out functionalism, the Miller Livery Stable expressed the
importance of the urban livery complex in American cities. It was a fitting monument to the owner who had
pioneered this service business from modest beginnings to an enterprise that merited national attention. The
building was surely the envy of the owners of the other eighty-eight livery and boarding stables listed in the city
directory of the time. Touting the Miller Livery Stable as the finest edifice of its kind in the East, the local press

christened it a “palace for horses.”

Whether Miller realized it or not, when his new stable opened, he had built a state-of-the-art facility for a soon-
to-pass-away mode of transportation. Automobiles were already making their way through the streets of
Buffalo in the 1890s, although their owners were a relatively few well-to-do individuals. In 1908, however,
Henry Ford brought out his Model T, the vehicle that would make the new invention affordable to the masses.
By 1918, when Booth Tarkington published his novel The Magnificent Ambersons, he could state that
“automobiles have come and almost all outward things are going to be different because of what they bring.”
As if heeding Tarkington's words, in that year, C. W, Miller, the “great innovator,” sold his laxurious stable."!

By the end of World War I, the problem of finding parking spaces for automobiles was becoming a serious
concern for American cities. “American’s Worry About Parking Cars and Not About World Politics,” ran a
headline in The New York Times in 1923, as many old livery stables around the country were being or were
about to be converted into parking garages. This was the fate of the Miller Livery Stable, a transformation that
permitted the structure to survive to the present day. In the 1920s, the building, rechristened the Huron Street
Garage (and later known at the Hertz Garage), was converted for auto storage. The original ramp configuration
changed (although it appears that timbers from the original horse ramps were reused) to fit the new tumning
radius of machines, and an additional ramp linked the third floor to the one above. (Access to the fifth and sixth
floors remained by elevator and stairs only.) New owners removed the stalls and other features for the care and
feeding of horses and decked over the light wells to allow for more parking space. (Their outline is easily
ascertainable in the framing of the ceilings.) The expanses of virtually unobstructed space on each floor easily
accommodated the demands for automobile storage, and the early elevators (upgraded) and stairways continued
to provide a useful secondary means of movement between floors, Eventually, with the flight of commerce and
business to the suburbs, even a multi-story private parking garage was no longer a viable business in downtown
Buffalo. The building ceased being used as a parking garage about the year 2000.

The C.W. Miller Stable is a significant landmark in the history of transportation in Buffalo and represents the
successful nineteenth century integration of distinctive architectural design and practical engineering. Although
obsolete for current transportation needs, the building’s inherent strengths are again recognized and can support
new and innovative uses.

' “Miller's Sale Ends Tradition of Old Buffalo, Buffalo Express. July 18, 1918, in Local History scrapbook, vol.1, pp. 56-57, Buffalo
& Erie County Public Library.
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CONSTRUCTION OF THE MILLER STABLE. BUFFALO, N. V.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The National Register boundary includes the stable building and the urban lot on which it stands,

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

. The boundary is coterminous with the historie property boundary.
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Name of Property: C. W, Miller Livery Stable

Location: 75 West Huron Street, Buffalo, Ene Co. NY

Photographs by: Martin Wachadlo, Date: April 2007

| Negatives at: NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and I'I]smnc Preservation, Peebles Island, Waterford, Nr:w York
12188

Key to Photographs:

principle (south) fagade on West Huron Street

prnciple {south) fagade and westemn elevation from the SW
general view of the fifth floor

general view of the sixth floor illustrating trusses

ramp between third and fourth floors

typical skylight
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